

SAFETY INSPECTION REPORT AND COMPLIANCE INSPECTION

1. LICENSEE/LOCATION INSPECTED

Testing Technologies, Inc.
1241 Featherstone Road
Woodbridge, VA 22191

2. NRC/REGIONAL OFFICE

Region 1
2100 Renaissance Blvd
Suite 100
King of Prussia, PA 19406-2713

REPORT NUMBER(S) 2022001

3. DOCKET NUMBER(S)

030-30657

4. LICENSE NUMBER(S)

45-25007-01

5. DATE(S) OF INSPECTION

05/17/2022 - 05/25/2022

LICENSEE:

The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license as they relate to radiation safety and to compliance with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license. The inspection consisted of selective examinations of procedures and representative records, interviews with personnel, and observations by the inspector. The inspection findings are as follows:

- 1. Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified.
- 2. Previous violation(s) closed.
- 3. The violation(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being cited because they were self-identified, non-repetitive, and corrective action was or is being taken, and the remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy, to exercise discretion, were satisfied.

_____ Non-cited violation(s) were discussed involving the following requirement(s):

- 4. During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of NRC requirements and are being cited in accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy. This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to posting in accordance with 10 CFR 19.11. (Violations and Corrective Actions)

10 CFR 71.5 (a) requires that each licensee who transports licensed material outside the site of usage, as specified in the NRC license, or where transport is on public highways, or who delivers licensed material to a carrier for transport, shall comply with the applicable requirements of the DOT regulations in 49 CFR parts 107, 171 through 180, and 390 through 397, appropriate to the mode of transport.


49 CFR 172.203(a)(1) requires the shipping description of a hazardous material on the shipping paper to include the identification number prescribed for the material as shown in Column (4) of the 49 CFR 172.101 table.

Contrary to the above, on several occasions between August 6, 2021, and May 17, 2022, the licensee transported licensed material outside the site of usage and on public highways within NRC jurisdiction and failed to include the correct identification number prescribed for the material. Specifically, the licensee transported Class 7 (radioactive) material with a shipping paper describing the material, in part, as UN2909, while the correct designation was UN2916.

This was determined to be a SLIV violation (NRC Enforcement Policy Section 6.8.d). To correct the violation, the licensee immediately changed the standard form used for the associated shipping paper and put them into service.

Statement of Corrective Actions

I hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the Inspector will be taken to correct the violations identified. This statement of corrective actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective steps which will be taken, date when full compliance will be achieved). I understand that no further written response to NRC will be required, unless specifically requested.

TITLE	PRINTED NAME	SIGNATURE	DATE
LICENSEE'S REPRESENTATIVE	Robert Kolbenstetter		5/25/22
NRC INSPECTOR	Jason vonEhr	Jason E. VonEhr	Digitally signed by Jason E. VonEhr Date: 2022.05.25 12:41:44 -04'00'
BRANCH CHIEF	Christopher Cahill		